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JURISDICTION

This case arises from the judgement to dismiss Mr. Seitz’s federal complaint
submitted on June 12, 2021. There was no motion filed after the judgement. Mr.

Seitz filed a notice of appeal on June 15, 2022.
FACTS

In 2016 the United (UAL) technicians narrowly approved a new Joint
Collective Bargaining Agreement (JCBA) by less than 1%. During the ratification
the Teamsters (IBT) proposed wage scales at United based on the Industry Reset

Cost Model would pay 2% above the average of American. (AA) and Delta (DL).

The UAL Technicians were told the new Industry Reset Letter of Agreement
(LOA) was negotiated to be based on public information that would be provided to
the membership. The Teamsters’ negotiators stated during ratification the Cost
Model was fought for and negotiated to be based on public information. The IBT

advisor Dan Akins stated the Model was “set and would not change ”. (1 6 FAC)

The Teamsters explained the Cost Model and its calculations would be
converted to an MS excel model within 2 months of ratification and then placed for

security on National Mediation Board (NMB) servers so it could not be changed.
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The union negotiators explained in detail the intent of the Cost Model with
all its calculations and the sum of those calculations. The application of Cost
Model with new Wage Scales, Time off, Benefit and Pension increases was stated

by the Teamsters to be 5.8% above the AA/DL Industry Average. (1 6 FAC ex #1)

The United Technicians were very distrustful of any convoluted formula
proposed by the IBT used to determine future UAL wage increases. The Teamster
negotiators including IBT Airline Division rep Vinnie Graziano and negotiating
committee reassured the voting membership that the Exhibit A Cost Model would
be kept secure on a server at the National Mediation Board (NMB). Therefore, it
could not be changed after being voted on and it would be presented to the United

Technicians at every Industry Reset period.

In 2018 during the second Industry Reset calculation the SFO Grievance
committee stated that the Cost Model was based on “readily available public SEC
information”. ( 7.SAC ex #4) The IBT Airline Division (AD) stated it was still

being securely held at the National Mediation Board. (NMB) (8 SAC ex #5)

From 2016 to 2020 American (AA) and Delta (DL) Technicians received
significant increases in Wages and Benefits, including Pay and Profit Sharing the
two largest components of the Industry Reset Cost Model. In 2020 American and

Delta pay, and profit sharing were AA $56.28 and DL $60.80 for an Industry


jimse
Highlight

jimse
Highlight

jimse
Highlight

jimse
Highlight


Case 3:21-cv-05346-VC Document 62 Filed 09/23/22 Page 8 of 43

Average of $58.54. According to the Industry Reset LOA United would have to

add 2% to that to make $59.71 the new Top Scale for UAL. In November of 2020

IBT AD rep Graziano signed a letter agreeing to new wage scales. The UAL
Technicians’ top wage scale with profit sharing for was $53.49 which was $6.22

less than required by the terms of the Industry Reset Letter of Agreement (LOA).

United Technicians across the system were puzzled by large differentials in
the Teamsters newly agreed to wage scales. The differences between United and
American varied widely from the previous 2016 wage scales, some by $14 dollars
an hour. United technicians requested a copy of the Exhibit A Cost Model. IBT rep
Vinnie Graziano stated for the first time in 2020 that the Cost Model was
proprietary and confidential information in the hands of the Company and would

remain there. He further stated that no officer in the teamster’s union has seen the

Cost Model. (117 SAC ex #9)

The plaintiff filed grievances over the newly implemented wage scales and
the new secret formula. Both grievances were consistent with the SFO IBT union

committees’ public statements and their interpretation of the Industry Reset Cost

Model in 2016 and 2018. (9 7 SAC ex #4)

UAL Technicians still held the original interpretation provided by the IBT

and its negotiators, in 2016 and again in 2018. The Cost Model was on the servers
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at the NMB and was based on public information to be provided to the membership
at every Reset just like in 2016. The words confidential and proprietary were never
used by IBT officers prior to 2020 until the letter from Vinnie Graziano. The union
and Company breached the CBA violating RLA Section 152 Seventh by changing

the terms and conditions of UAL Technicians wages. ({ 30 SAC)

The first grievance I filed was 2020-986-SFO-UA-142 (UA-142) filed on
December 14, 2020, challenging the new calculation of the Cost Model. The
second grievance I filed 2021-986-SFO-UA-5 (UA-5) on January 6, 2021,
challenging the union and company for changing of the Cost Model to a secret
formula. This grievance (UA-5) also questioned the integrity of the pension
advisor at Cheiron who agreed to the new pension calculation. During the
grievance process the SFO IBT Grievance officers committed numerous Duty of
Fair Representation (DFR) violations, acting arbitrarily, in bad faith and with
dishonesty and hostility over the following three months from December 14 to

March 23, 2021.

On January 13, 2021, United management denied the first step grievance and
within hours that same day the SFO IBT rep Greg Sullivan sent a close out letter
on grievance (UA-5) without an investigation or explanation stating only the
grievance lacked “sufficient merit”. The grievance was closed out without the

consent of the grievant. (56 SAC Y 30 FAC ex #5) Closing a meritorious
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grievance without consent or investigation is a bad faith arbitrary DFR violation.
What makes this even more egregious, is that the grievance was consistent with

committees own previous contractual interpretations and should have been upheld.

The SFO IBT Grievance Committee stated in 2016 and again in 2018, that ALL
components of the Exhibit A Cost Model were based on readily available public

SEC information to be provided to the membership. (4 7 SAC ex #4 pg. 2)

The Company timeline to answer the first step grievance (UA-142) expired
on Jan 6, 2021. On January 14, 2021, IBT rep Greg Sullivan emailed United
Airlines manager Jeff McDonald and scheduled a 2™ Step Hearing on January 26,
2021, for the remaining grievance (UA-142). On January 21, 2021, IBT rep
Sullivan sent an email stating the 2" Step hearing was now cancelled, no
explanation. On January 27, 2021, IBT rep Greg Sullivan emailed another closeout
letter for grievance (UA-142). The grievance again was closed out without consent
or explanation to the plaintiff, another DFR violation. This meritorious grievance

was also consistent with the Teamsters long held interpretation of the LOA

The SFO Grievance Committee led by appointed IBT Business Agents Mark
DesAngles and Javier Lectora provided no explanation for their sudden and
unexpected change in the previous interpretation of the Industry Reset LOA.

The committee refused to even answer in either closeout letter how or why the
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Exhibit A Cost Model was changed to proprietary and confidential. The committee
refused to answer why the union was no longer willing to provide the Cost Model

they so thoroughly explained in detail in 2018.

The very definition of the words in the name Exhibit A Cost Model explains
the purpose and intent of the negotiated LOA in 2016. To display the estimated

price (value) of the JCBA.

Exhibit — to display Cost — estimate the price of

Model - a system of data presented as a mathematical description

The Model’s functions were to display the public information the Model is based
on to the membership to confirm that their wages are 2% the average of American
and Delta Technicians. That was the stated interpretation of and intent over 4 years

by the Teamsters union at least until 2020. (See ex #1 SAC)

It is both irrational and lacking in common sense or logic that the Teamsters union
negotiators would state they had to fight a hard-won victory and negotiate to have
a Cost Model based on public information, only to have it changed 2 months later
to a new secret and proprietary Company Model. This is the story presented by
both defendants to the court, which is in complete contradiction of 4 years of

history.
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Furthermore, the Teamsters union stated the Cost Model would be placed on
the National Mediation Boards server for security and then 4 years later they claim
the Cost Model contained information so secret and proprietary to the Company
that no one in the Teamsters union has seen it. These statements were all based on

a proven 4 year lie perpetuated by the Teamsters that the Model was being held

securely at the NMB (See § 105 SAC ex #11 FOIA to NMB)

What is even more disconcerting was the grievance committee members
silent behavior and refusal to even discuss their decision not to pursue the
grievances or provide a reason to the grievants, why they lacked sufficient merit.
The grievances seek to remedy a $6 dollar an hour discrepancy in Wages and
Profit Sharing, the two largest components of the Cost Model and they were closed
without explanation. There were three grievances filed over the 2020 Reset, two by
the plaintiff and one by Geoff Wik a Plant Maintenance technician. Mr. Wik’s
grievance procedure experience led to union hostility, misinformation, threats and
intimidation with IBT B/A Mark DesAngles. The record of those DFR violations
by the union is provided to the court in hearing transcripts (1134 SAC). Geoff Wik
also signed a declaration of support for the plaintiff outlining Duty of Fair
Representation violations committed against him by IBT officers during the

grievance process. (pd. 9 Opp to IBT MTD SAC) The documents provide

substantial evidence of the bad faith, hostility and threats shown Mr. DesAngles.
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On February 2, 2021, the plaintiff received a closeout letter for grievance

(UA-142) and responded back to IBT rep Sullivan.

Greg, you stated earlier that this grievance was at second step and scheduled for a
hearing on the 26th. What happened? Why again did the grievance committee deny
the grievance? Could someone on the IBT grievance committee provide me with
the hourly cost value of CARP for a United Technician for the 2020 calculation?
CARP is an ERISA covered plan so there must be some Federal Reporting
requirements or reports that are filed on the plan value or cost. | want to move this

grievance to the 3rd step. What do | need to do? Sullivan refused to answer.

On February 4, 2021, the plaintiff received an email from IBT BA Mark
DesAngles stating the closed grievances were reopened and the two Industry Reset
grievances will be merged into one grievance named 2021-986-SFO-2 now at
Step 2 of the grievance procedure. On February 5, 2021, IBT Grievance Secretary
John Johnson stated in email that Geoff Wik’s grievance would now be merged
into the plaintiff’s and all three grievances are named 2021-986-SFO-2 Et al and

will be heard at the same time.

On February 9, 2021, the plaintiff emailed IBT rep Greg Sullivan to ask how
and why the grievances were reopened. The plaintiff had just had his first
grievance for the 2018 Industry Reset federal complaint 20-cv-05442- DMR Seitz v
Teamsters dismissed in the Oakland Federal Court in November of 2020, because
the union argued to Hon. Judge Donna Ryu that once a grievant is even told a

grievance is closed it is final and binding citing Del Costello v Teamsters.

8
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Jim Seitz email: “Greg who in the union decided to reopen closed grievances after
the grievance committee and the company closed it. Was it the Local union? Was it
the Airline Division? Who at United the company agreed to reopen these
grievances? | would like to talk to the company rep who made this decision and
why they made it. Under what section of the CBA is this covered? You stated they
were reopened, | would just like an explanation as to why the union and the

company have made a 180 on their previous decisions.

On February 10, 2021, Mr. Sullivan responded but refused to answer why or
how the union reopened the grievance. He would not even discuss the process to
reopen the grievances. The union was silent and did not answer any questions.

At this point even the layman can easily infer that the union and company were
working together, refusing to answer any questions related to their decision to
reopen the grievances. IBT rep Sullivan responded in email; “Jim, to answer the
question about reinstating the grievances, your grievance is at Step 2 after an
internal review of our process here at SFO. The Company is not involved. ”

The plaintiff was justifiably angry his previous federal case over this same
contractual issue was dismissed 3 months earlier by the Oakland 9th Circuit Court
for statutory timeliness. On February 10, 2021, Geoff Wik heard the same thing

from IBT rep John Johnson, who stated the union discussed his grievance in depth,
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but refused to explain why the IBT committee had decided to reopen his grievance
stating it was “above his pay grade”

On February 20, 2021, Geoff Wik contacted John Johnson to inform him he
is going out on medical leave and authorized Jim Seitz to speak on his behalf
during the 2" step hearing. Geoff Wik was the first to fall victim to the constant
misinformation and threats from the Teamsters concerning his right to file
grievances under the RLA. Geoff Wik’s testimony of the ordeal is now in the
record (4 SAC 90 Ex 20) The IBT hearing transcripts from the charges filed
against IBT rep DesAngles. The declaration provided by Mr. Wik in the (Opp to

IBT MTD SAC) court doc 49-1. Considering the statements made by IBT rep Mark

DesAngles the court can reasonably infer that this same contempt and hostility was
held for the plaintiff with the same grievance.

On March 4, 2021, the 2" Step hearing was held concerning Et al grievance.
IBT rep Sullivan performed no investigation into the merits of the grievance prior
to the hearing. The plaintiff was forced to present his grievance and Mr. Wik’s
grievance on his own without assistance from IBT rep Greg Sullivan or IBT rep
John Johnson who had done no investigation into the grievance but sat there
silently and refused to advocate for the plaintiff and their own previous public
interpretations of the LOA. Greg Sullivan violated his Duty of Fair representation

by failing to act as an advocate for the plaintiff during. IBT rep Sullivan ignored

10
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the past four years of the Grievance Committees interpretation and public
statements to the membership that promised to provide them with the Cost Model
and its public information at every reset.

Greg Sullivan sat silent during the hearing as the plaintiff advocated for a
fair equitable consideration to investigate the Company and Unions newly
announced interpretation of the LOA. The grievance was filed to enforce the LOA
and hold the Company and the Union to their statements made in 2016, to provide
a Cost Model based on public information that showed United Technicians were

actually being paid 2% above the average of American and Delta Technicians.

The plaintiff asked the union and company to follow the LOA and provide
the Exhibit A Cost Model and its public information that they had stated was
securely held on the servers NMB over the last 4 years. I provided 13 Exhibits
during the hearing citing historical documents and the various statements made by
the IBT grievance committee, and the IBT Airline Division. I presented copies of
the original grievance that were denied by both the union and company (UA-5) on
the same day as lacking sufficient merit. The plaintiff then presented the Company
and Union with procedural questions about their process to close and then reopen

those grievances a month after being closed. Those questions were ignored. Both

sides refused to answer the questions presented in writing. (65 SAC ex #17)

11
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The plaintiff provided the only available public information that are the two largest
components of the Industry Reset Pay and Profit Sharing that showed a $6.22
disparity in the new confidential and proprietary Cost Model calculation.

Greg Sullivan violated his duty of fair representation when he refused to act
as an advocate during the hearing and argue for the original union interpretation.
The statements made by the plaintiff in that hearing were once spoken by Greg
Sullivan, Mark DesAngles and Javier Lectora but on the day of the hearing the
plaintiff was the only one who consistently held to the original interpretation of the
letter of agreement. The whole hearing was a perfunctory performance of the
grievance procedure by IBT rep Sullivan and Johnson.

The union may have a wide latitude of discretion for contract interpretation
but when that interpretation is changed from public information and then swung
180 degrees from the original interpretation to Company Proprietary and
Confidential the unions new interpretation becomes irrational and arbitrary bad

faith DFR as defined by — (1 60 SAC Beck v United Food 9" Cir 2007) and(pg. 12

Opp to IBT MTD SAC Robesky v. Qantas Airways 9" Cir. 1978.)

On March 10, United management denied the grievances. Stating that there
is nothing in the contract that states they have to provide the Exhibit A Cost Model

to the membership. (4 35 FAC ex #12) This is in direct contradiction to Union

12
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statements during ratification of the LOA in 2016 and repeated again by the

committee 1n 2018 (Y7 SAC ex #4.)

On March 22, 2021, the plaintiff emailed Mr. Sullivan inquiring about the
status of the grievance and the upcoming grievance timeline to file an appeal and
move to the third step. The plaintiff stated, if the union would not support the
grievance, he would pursue it on his own without union assistance. (4 67 SAC Ex
#18) This is consistent with the statutory rights under the RLA as described by (1

72 SAC Elgin v Burley US 1945) (178 SAC Stevens v Teamsters 9" Cir. 1980)

On March 23, 2021, Mr. Sullivan emailed the plaintiff a closeout letter on
the grievances. The answer was the same “lacks sufficient merit” no explanation,
no reason given for the lack of merit for a grievance that was consistent with the
union’s years of interpretation. Furthermore, Greg Sullivan stated there is no

ability under the contract to appeal, the grievance committee’s decision.

(1178 SAC Stevens v Teamsters 9" Cir. 1980)

On April 19, counsel for the plaintiff contacted the National Mediation
Board (NMB) to request a copy of the Exhibit A Cost Model that the Teamsters
union negotiators and officers stated was being held for security on its servers in

2016. IBT rep Graziano repeated this statement in a June 2018. ({8 SAC Ex #5)

On April 29, 2021, the NMB Acting General Counsel Maria-Kate Dowling

responded, “The agency is not in possession of the document you are seeking ”.

13


jimse
Highlight

jimse
Highlight

jimse
Highlight

jimse
Highlight


Case 3:21-cv-05346-VC Document 62 Filed 09/23/22 Page 19 of 43

Ms. Kate Dowling stated, “You may contact our FOIA Public Liaison, John S.F.
Gross for any further assistance and to discuss any aspect of your request.”

On May 5, 2021, the plaintiffs’ counsel called the NMB FOIA Public Liaison Mr.
Gross about the Cost Model. Mr. Gross stated “we never had the cost model on our

2y €«

server and never would” “we don’t have a server like that, we do not use servers
like that” This confirmed that the Teamsters negotiators, financial advisor Dan
Akins and Mr. Graziano all lied to the United Technicians in an effort to gain
support to pass the 2016 tentative agreement. The union officers and negotiators

committed a DFR violation, acting dishonestly, misrepresenting the agreement, an

act of bad faith. This FOIA is listed as (1105 SAC Ex # 11)

On May 8, 2021, the plaintiff wrote a letter to the Teamsters International
General Secretary Treasurer requesting a true and correct copy of the United
Airlines JCBA with all letters of agreement and specifically the Exhibit A Cost

Model outlined in the Industry Reset LOA. The International Union did not

respond to the request. (pg. 4 ex #2 Opp IBT MTD SAC).

On June 12, 2021, the plaintiff filed a complaint in federal court under the Railway

Labor Act citing breach of contract and DFR violations by the Teamsters union.

14
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PROCEEDINGS BEFORE THE DISTRICT COURT
A. REQUEST FROM THE DISTRICT COURT

The plaintiff requested Honorable Judge Chhabria for a jury trial to find that
the Teamsters committed numerous Duty of Fair Representation violations during
the grievance process and in collusion with United breached the CBA of UAL
Technicians by failing to follow the negotiated terms of the Industry Reset Letter
of Agreement #29, violating Section 152 Seventh of the RLA.

The plaintiff requested the court order United Airlines and the Teamsters to
release the Industry Reset Exhibit A Cost Model based on publicly available
information that determined the 2016 along with the 2018 and 2020 Cost Models.

The plaintiff asked the court to make whole the United employees for any
losses associated with the 2018 and 2020 Industry Reset calculations that did not
follow the original 2016 Cost Model calculations and application that were
negotiated and voted on by the United Airlines Mechanics Class and Cratft.

The plaintiff requested a jury trial citing a hybrid claim and futility in the
grievance process, showing that the RLA mandated grievance machinery had been

repudiated by the IBT Grievance Committee and United Airlines management.

The plaintiff agreed to go to arbitration under the RLA process, (1141SAC)

but it is now clear that would end in failure considering the dishonesty and

15
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manipulation that has been displayed by the IBT and United in the grievance
procedure and in the court during this complaint’s proceedings already. The
plaintiff now believes the RLA remedy process would be drawn out as long as

possible by the defendants and end up back in federal court.

The appeals court offered their mediation services for pro se plaintiffs, and I
accepted that offer in a letter to Mr. Kaiser prior to filing this brief. It is clear from
Mr. Kaiser’s response the defendants are not interested in mediation.

This case involves hundreds of millions in owed back wages alone by the
plaintiff’s own estimates. This estimate is in the complaint and does not even
include 401k and Pension Contributions that need to be considered. The plaintiff
believes that the irreversible harm done for over 4 years to 8000 UAL Technicians

and their families has to be stopped asap. (1100 SAC 2020 AA v UA Wages)

These issues raised in this complaint can only be fairly examined in an open
forum and jury trial to reconcile the facts and get to the truth. The UAL technicians
and their families need to know, how and why they fell from the highest paid in the

industry in 2008 to the lowest paid under Teamsters representation in 2022.

16
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B. LEGAL CLAIMS RAISED

The plaintiff has stated DFR violations citing examples of arbitrary actions,
bad faith, hostility and dishonesty by the Teamsters grievance committee during
the grievance process. IBT Reps Greg Sullivan, Mark DesAngles, John Johnson
and Clacy Griswold misrepresented the statutory rights of employees and the
grievance procedure and refused to investigate a meritorious grievance. The
Teamsters union denied the plaintiff’s statutory right all RLA employees have to
move their grievances to arbitration under 45 USC Section 151&181-184 for Air
Carriers. (Count Il SAC Breach of CBA Denying the Statutory RLA Right to

Arbitration) Elgin Joliet & Eastern Railway Co. v. Burley et al., (US Supreme

Court 1945)

The pro se plaintiff cited Vaca v Sipes for arbitrary decisions made during
the grievance procedure without reason and in bad faith, acting dishonestly and
performing the grievance procedure in a perfunctory manner by an exclusive agent
that controls the higher levels of the grievance procedure. The 6™ Cir. Court also
thought the NLRA Vaca v Sipes was an acceptable citation for violations of Duty
for Fair Representation under the RLA in Kaschak v Consolidated Rail.

(Kaschak v Consolidated Rail 6™ Cir. 1983)

17
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IBT Greg Sullivan and the IBT grievance committee denied a meritorious
grievance that was consistent their own previous public statements and the original
interpretation of the Letter of Agreement.

The plaintiff provided exhibits from the IBT committee (1 4 SAC ex 4) that

stated the Cost Model was based on public information in contradiction to their
new interpretation without providing a reason.

The union closed a grievance on the same day without an investigation and
without providing a reason the 9 Circuit citing Robesky “A union must have an
ample basis upon which to make their decisions and provide to the grievant the
basis for which the grievance was denied. ” The IBT never provided a reason.

Greqgqg v Teamsters Local 150 (9th Cir. 1983) (pg. 13 Opp to UAL MTD SAC)

“While unions are accorded great leeway in deciding how to handle employee

grievances, the merits of the underlying dispute or claim are not irrelevant to
evaluating bad faith ”. The IBT committee never explained the closing of the
meritorious grievance that was consistent with their own previous interpretation.
The grievance committee claimed to have held discussions over the grievance, but
John Johnson the Teamsters Grievance Secretary refused to disclose what they
discussed stating it was above his pay grade.

In Banks v Bethlehem the court found it was a DFR violation not to properly

investigate a grievance and call relevant witnesses. The court also stated in banks

18
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“before assessing the merits of a grievance, a union must have an ample basis
upon which to make such an assessment.” Greg Sullivan and the committee did
not perform any investigation nor could they, the Cost Model was changed to
Company confidential and proprietary, so they couldn’t explain the new $6.22 per

hour wage gap between United and American Technicians.

(Banks v Bethlehem Steel Corp. 9th Cir. 1988) (pg.6. Opp to IBT MTD FAC)

IBT rep, Greg Sullivan and Grievance Secretary John Johnson then refused
answer any questions from the grievants on why and how the union and company
suddenly reopened their closed grievances. Acting arbitrarily without providing a
rational and logical explanation to the grievants.

IBT Rep John Johnson stated to the other grievant Geoff Wik “we discussed
it at length, but we are not going to tell you what we discussed”. During the 2™
step hearing the plaintiff asked the union reps Mr. Johnson and Mr. Sullivan why
the grievances were closed and then reopened and what process was used both
refused to answer. After the hearing the grievances were again closed without an

explanation why the union would not pursue them.

(Beck v United Food 9th Cir. 2007) (pg.5 Opp to IBT MTD SAC)

The actions stated above as well as their conduct during the hearing showed
IBT reps Sullivan and Johnson were, performing the grievance procedure in a

perfunctory manner. The union and company scheduled the 2™ Step hearing, but
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Mr. Sullivan did not act as an advocate for the plaintiff during the hearing. IBT
Rep Sullivan sat silently through the entire hearing after he performed a
halfhearted reading of the text of the new grievances. More importantly IBT reps
Sullivan and Johnson never argued or advocated for the union’s original
interpretation that the Exhibit A Cost Model. The plaintiff presented 13 exhibits
during the hearing including the Cost Model and the grievance committees own
report that stated all information was public and that they would provide it. Greg
Sullivan and John Johnson did not advocate for the grievant and ignored these
exhibits during the 2" Step hearing and afterwards. They sat and said nothing even
though the documents from their own committee were presented during the hearing
to prove the grievance was consistent with their original interpretation. (7 SAC ex
#4) During the hearing IBT Rep Sullivan did not even challenge United’s new
interpretation that the Cost Model was now their own proprietary and confidential

property. (1113 SAC Vaca v Sipes US 1967)

The Teamsters defendant union and Staff attorney Ms. Diedre Holland who
now works as a mediator for the National Mediation Board (NMB) argued to the
Oakland 9™ Circuit Court in 2020 that once a grievance is closed it is final(f 55
SAC) That is what the union defendants argued in their MTD in Case No. 20 cv
04452-DMR the plaintiffs Federal DFR complaint against the Teamsters for the

2018 Industry Reset. That grievance was also closed with no explanation.
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In 2021 the Teamsters defendants now argue to the San Francisco 9" Circuit
Court judge that a grievance can be reopened without a process and without
providing any rational reason to the same plaintiff.

The union then closed the grievance once again with the same quote “lacks
sufficient merit” after performing a perfunctory hearing without an investigation,
without asking any questions during the hearing. They also failed to provide any
rational reason why they changed their position on the LOA. The plaintiff cited
closing the grievance again without providing a reason arbitrarily as defined by the
9% Circuit a. Conduct which lacks a rational basis; or b. Egregious conduct

reflecting a reckless disregard of the rights of the employee. Id. at 1088-90

Robesky v. Quantas Empire (9th Cir. 1978) (pg. 12 Opp to IBT MTD SAC)

. In Robesky the union leaders did not provide a rational reason not to tell the
grievant her grievance was closed. In this case the union refused to provide a
rational reason why the grievance was closed again for a second time. The union

recklessly disregarded the plaintiffs statutory right to proceed to arbitration.

Hostility, Threats and intimidation from the union. The grievance
committee’s hostility towards the grievants who challenged their new secret
formula interpretation were presented to the court in the hearing transcripts of

Geoff Wik (4 90 SAC) the other grievant involved in the Et al grievance.
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Mr. Wik went on stress leave after Teamsters SFO 986 Business Mark
DesAngles threatened, intimidated and harassed him during the grievance process.
Mark DesAngles one of the chairmen of the Teamsters grievance committee was
so hostile to Mr. Wik during the grievance process, he was forced to take stress
leave and couldn’t attend the hearing. If IBT rep Mark DesAngles couldn’t
convince Geoff Wik he didn’t have the right to file grievances and to drop the
grievance, then he would threaten and harass him until he couldn’t show up to
defend his rights. To threaten and intimidate people who challenge the union
unfortunately it seems to be prevalent at United Airlines under Teamsters
representation. Mr. Wik filed formal hearing charges against Mr. Mark DesAngles.

The plaintiff provided transcript to the court from Mr. Wik from the hearing
based on Mr. DesAngles treatment during the grievance process.

(Court Doc 49-1) 4. Mr. DesAngles conducted himself in a manner bringing
reproach upon the union by screaming at me, a fellow member; by using profanity
in telling me to "f' off; by threatening me for exercising my rights; by demeaning
me for asking questions, and failing to calmly explain why should stop moving my
grievance forward, stating | was being selfish and greedy for simply exercising
contractual rights. Railroad Labor Act.

The court can reasonably infer by the statements made by IBT rep
DesAngles and his views on grievants rights, the same hostility and animus was
held for the plaintiff. Based on this testimony Teamsters grievance committee chair

Mark DesAngles and his grievance committee think we have no right to file
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grievances. The plaintiff was the only remaining grievant to challenge the unions
new interpretation of the LOA.

In Stevens v Teamster Local 2707 three airline employees prevailed when
their union breached its duty of fair representation by unilaterally withdrawing
their grievances that the union felt were without merit without notice to the

employees, thereby foreclosing the latter from pursuing their claims individually.

The plaintiff emailed IBT rep Sullivan March 22, 2021, and informed him of
the impending grievance timeline and instructed him that he wanted to move his
grievance forward on his own. Mr. Sullivan emailed back the following day stating
that the grievance was closed out. ( 69 SAC ex 19) This is a bad faith and arbitrary
DFR violation of consent without notification as cited in Stevens. The Committee
closed it as meritless. This 1s also a DFR violation of the plaintiff’s grievance
rights under the RLA as cited by Stevens. Greg Sullivan also stated there was no
appeal process available to the plaintiff. This is another DFR violation of the
plaintiff’s statutory rights as cited in Stevens, Elgin, Capraro, Kaschak, and
Landers. The 9™ Cir. WD stated in Stevens. “The right of individual employees to
process their own grievances is statutory in nature and should not be lightly
abrogated ”. Greg Sullivan and the grievance committee acted egregiously and in

bad faith and closed the grievance without the plaintiffs his consent.

(Stevens v Teamsters Local 2707 (WD 1980) (1 78 SAC)
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The plaintiff cited numerous cases to the court that affirmed the employees
statutory RLA right to proceed through the grievance process on their own to
arbitration. The Supreme Court stated when describing those rights

“It follows that the individual employee's rights cannot be nullified merely
by agreement between the carrier and the union. They are statutory rights, which

he may exercise independently or authorize the union to exercise in his behalf.”

Elgin Joliet & Eastern Railway Co. v. Burley et al., (US 1945) (f 72 SAC)

The court stated in Capraro “the grievance and arbitration process are not
optional under the RLA. Congress intended the RLA's procedures, particularly the
Adjustment Boards, to be the exclusive means of dealing with minor matters
involving the interpretation of a collective bargaining agreement and for all
aggrieved employees to have access to such procedures.” “It necessarily follows
that an employer and a union, through a negotiated collective bargaining
agreement, cannot deprive a category of employees of access to the grievance and
arbitration process. Capraro v UPS 993 F2.d 328 (3" Cir 1993) ( 73 SAC)

In Landers v National Railroad Passenger Corp 1988 the Supreme Court
maintained that grievants have the statutory right to take their grievances to
arbitration with their own representation. The court stated

“That while the Act does not allow for the representative of their choice during
company level grievances” The court stated 153 First (j) which expressly allowed

employees the representative of their choice at the Adjustment Board level.

Landers v. National Railroad Passenger Corp (US 1988) (/75 sac)
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In Kaschak the court stated “the RLA contemplates the presence of three
entities: the employer, the individual employee and the union (as representative of
the collective employees). The rights of the individual employee as against the
employer are not coextensive with those of the union; each party under the statute

maintains a distinct right to enforce the obligations of the other two. ”

More importantly they stated, “Absent separate enforcement rights
exercisable by the individual employee, there would be no check on possible
collusion between the employer and the union to the detriment of some or all of the
individuals™ See e.g., Steele v. Louisville Nashville R. Co., supra

Kaschak v Consolidated Rail Corp (6" Cir 1983) (1 77 SAC)

The plaintiff believes he has adequately demonstrated the union DFR in
denying the plaintiff his statutory rights during the grievance process. The
company worked collusively in repudiating the grievance machinery by the
unexplained actions of both the company and union in closing and reopening
grievances and scheduling a “show hearing ” to avoid a DFR violation. During and
after the hearing the Company and Union both refused to answer basic procedural
questions over their grievance process. These unanswered questions are presented

in (65 SAC ex 17)

CA Labor Codes 222 and 223 prevent the negotiation of secret formulas into
union contracts that defraud the employees or the state out of the any portion of

their negotiated the contractually negotiated rate. (1129 1 133 SAC) The plaintiff
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provided United’s own JCBA language - Article 1 Purpose, Scope and Status of
Agreement - Paragraph J 4 page 14. It is the intent of the parties that they be and
remain in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. 2016-2022 United

Technicians JCBA (pg.15 Opp to UAL MTD SAC)

By changing the Cost Model in 2020 from public to Confidential and Proprietary
Company and Union have changed the terms of the original LOA and violated
these State Labor Codes. United Airlines cannot claim a right for preemption under
the RLA for a secret wage formula that it did not negotiate in the contract. The
plaintiff also cited the Schurke test stating a state right not found in the contract not
preempted. There is no right to a secret wage formula in the United CBA.

Alaska Airlines Inc v Schurke (9" Circuit Court 2018) (pg. 18 Opp UAL MTD

SAC) The plaintiff also cited ATA Aircon FedEx United v City and County of SFO
SFO Airports Commission, which applied Medical Benefits and Pay requirements
over the CBA Benefits and Pay to show that even RLA preemption has its limits.

ATA Aircon FedEx United v City and County of SFO SFO Airports Commission

(9™ Circuit Court 2001) page 18 Opp to UAL MTD SAC
The plaintiff also cited the Airline Deregulation Act and its conditions for
preemption spelled out in the Morales v TWA there the court outlined the three

primary standards for preemption and a secret formula wasn’t one of them.

(Morales v TWA US Supreme Court 1992) (pg. 18 Opp to UAL MTD SAC)
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The plaintiff brought up the Futility exception to proceed to federal court to have a
fair and just hearing of the facts citing Vaca v Sipes again in ({ 113 SAC).

The courts have created exceptions to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Adjustment
Board Jurisdiction. Court may hear minor disputes when 1) The employer has
repudiated the grievance machinery, 2) The resort to the administrative remedy
would be futile 3) The employer is joined in a breach of the Duty of Fair
Representation claim against the Union. An employee may pursue an action in a
federal court despite failing to fully exhaust contractual remedies when.

(1) "the union has the ‘sole power' under the contract to invoke the upper-level
grievance procedures and yet prevents an employee from exhausting contractual
remedies by wrongfully refusing to process the employee's grievance in violation
of its duty of fair representation. (2) the employer's conduct amounts to a
repudiation of the remedial procedures specified in the contract," (Vaca

v. Sipes, 386 U.S. 171, 185-86, 87 S. Ct. 903, 17 L. Ed. 2d 842 (1967)

The plaintiftf also brought up a Hybrid claim where the Company and the Union
are joined together in DFR violation and in this case a Contract Breach USC 45
RLA Section 152 changing the wages, terms and conditions outside of Section 156

the negotiations process of the RLA. Steele v Louisville & Nashville Railroad Co.

et al. US Supreme Court (1944) (pg. 10 of Opp to IBT MTD SAC)
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Glover v. St. Louis-San Francisco Ry., 393 U.S. 324, 330 (1969) (pg.13 Opp to

UAL MTD SAC)

NLRA Citations - The plaintiff cited the NLRA, and its amendments found in the
LMRA - 1947 Taft Hartley act — to provide the court with specific DFR charges
the plaintiff believes was requested by the court in the leave to amend. The NLRA
aided the plaintiff in describing the DFR violations more specifically to the court.
These citations under the NLRA are consistent with the common law DFR

violations cited under the RLA. This mistake has even been made by some federal

courts in Raus v Brotherhood Ry Carmen 663 F.2d 791 (8" Cir. 1981)

The Supreme Court has often looked to the LMRA and the National Labor
Relations Act (NLRA) in construing or interpreting the RLA. See Brotherhood of
R.R. Trainmen v. Jacksonville Terminal Co., supra; Steele v. Louisville Nashville
R. Co This is particularly true where the general principles to be considered are
capable of consistent application. The importance of the compensation principle
underlies all federal labor relations schemes and has been often discussed and
applied in the context of both the LMRA and the RLA. Compare Bowen v. United
States Postal Service, supra and International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers

v. Foust, supra. Kaschak v. Consolidated Rail Corp. 707 F2.d 902, 906-08 (6'" Cir.

1983)
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Featherbedding — the plaintiff was unaware of this terminology until he
reviewed Sections 7 and 8 of the LMRA Taft Harley Act of 1947 that was added
the NLRA. (] 125 SAC) The courts discuss NLRA principles applying to RLA.
Accordingly, we reject the appellee’s implication that this Court should ignore the
teaching and result in Vaca v. Sipes merely because, on its facts, it dealt with an
employer-employee relationship under the LMRA. Thus, where appropriate, labor
issues may be properly resolved by going beyond the four corners of any
applicable statutory scheme. Moreover, to the extent that a corpus of national
labor policy exists, we are to look for it first in the law developed during the
administration and interpretation of the National Labor Relations

Act. Brotherhood of Railroad Trainmen v. Terminal Co., 394 U.S. at 383, 89 S.Ct.

at 1117 (applying NLRA principles to resolve issues in RLA context).

PROCEEDINGS BEFORE THE COURT OF APPEALS

A. ISSUES TO REVIEW AS PRESENTED TO THE DISTRICT COURT

In the honorable judge’s first point raised granting the defendants motion to
dismiss, he stated deference normally given to decisions by a collective bargaining
representative. The court also cited personal animus as not being the basis for a
DFR complaint to allow the plaintiff to have a viable complaint.
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The plaintiff believes that is a secondary issue presented in the complaint.

The primary issue is one of statutory rights of the RLA employees to have their
grievances presented, investigated, heard in a fair and impartial manner up to and
including arbitration. Every employee deserves an answer to resolve their minor

disputes.

The court stated that there has been no claim made against the union
defendants therefore the court does not have jurisdiction over the claim that United

breached the contract. The court cites Bautista v Pan American World Airways Inc

828 F.2d 546, 551 (9 Cir. 1987). While that case concerns the negotiations and
interpretations. The case before the court isn’t about interpretation of the Cost
Model. The information presented to the court shows that something has
drastically changed in the interpretation and application of the Model that affects
thousands of employees and their families and it needs answered. More

importantly the grievance needs to be investigated and answered.

This complaint is about the grievance procedure and the statutory rights of RLA
employees. It is about the treatment of those employees who exercised their rights
to have their grievances heard through the statutory process set up by congress to

have minor disputes answered and settled.
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Disputes over contract interpretations and application of the CBA happen every
day, which is why there needs to be a grievance procedure that functions properly
and impartially. Our statutory grievance procedure contains individual rights
provided by Congress under the RLA and should not be diminished or pushed
aside, or as the Supreme Court said in Elgin v Burley 1945 -without individual

rights workers become only shadows with no voice.

The court stated that Sections 222 and 223 are preempted by the RLA. I do not
believe that to be the case considering the clear language in the contract that states

United Airlines will comply with all applicable state laws.

The court states that the NLRA does not apply to RLA employees, while the
plaintiff now understands common law, or previous judicial decisions as a legal
basis for most DFR complaints under the RLA, the plaintiff will and has provided
numerous examples of RLA, LMRA and NLRA cross application by the courts.
The courts call it a common standard that should be used. The LMRA helps
workers understand their rights and how to protect them. In my 32 years working
under the RLA, I have come to appreciate the NLRA and the NLRB which has the
LMRA and enforcement arm to assist workers unlike the employees under the
NMB, that’s why we are here today. The LMRDA applies to all unions to prevent

corruption in the unions, the LMRA does the same.
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B. LEGAL SUPPORT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

On June 6, 2022, United Airlines pilot William Bumpus won a decision in a
case involving the interpretation of seniority rights. United Airlines and ALPA
refused to process Mr. Bumpus’s grievance to arbitration. The Hon. Judge Shah
ruled consistent with the US Supreme Court in Elgin that every employee had the
right to proceed to arbitration on their own with their grievances.

Individual employees have a statutory right to compel arbitration. The union

cannot act as a “gatekeeper,” and prevent plaintiff from invoking his statutory

right to arbitration. (Bumpus v ALPA/United 7" Cir 2022)

Judge Chhabria states the union deference in its ability to close a grievance
but as the 9™ Cir. cited in Stevens v Teamsters Local 2707. The union cannot
deprive the employees of their statutory right to proceed the grievance process, or
closeout a grievance without the consent of the grievant, the Greg Sullivan closed
out the grievance without consent and without providing even a reason or
interpretation, after the plaintiff had instructed him to move it forward denying him
his statutory rights. Greg Sullivan and the Committee performed no investigation
into the merits of the case. The Ninth Circuit has held that when a grievance is
"important and meritorious, the union must provide a "more substantial" reason for

rejecting the grievance. A union's contractual analysis may be perfunctory or
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arbitrary if it never seriously considered the grievant's rights; if it improperly
considered the individual grievant's facts as part of a group grievance with other,
non-similarly situated employees; and if the union's explanation is factually
inconsistent and contradictory. In the complaint the appeals court today the
plaintiff didn’t even receive and explanation on why his grievance were denied.

By all the standards set forward by the 9 Circuit court the SFO Teamsters
grievance committee has committed numerous arbitrary and bad faith acts over the
course of 4 months to constitute a solid DFR complaint against the union.

Rollins v. Community Hosp. of San Bernardino, 839 F.3d 1181,207 LRRM 3465

(9th Cir. 2016).

In Anderson v United Paper workers, the union was found to have committed a bad
faith DFR violation by presenting false information during a ratification of a
contract. IBT Rep Vinnie Graziano and the Teamsters negotiators presented false
information to get a contract ratified. That is exactly what happened in this case.
The union lied to the membership about the security of the Cost Model being held
on the servers at the NMB to get ratification. The union continued perpetuating this
lie for 4 years The complaint has provided sufficient evidence for a bad faith DFR
violation on contractual misrepresentation that has led to the loss of tens of

millions in contractually owed wages. The union has now blocked our right to
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investigate grievances further and proceed to arbitration over the interpretation
which is our statutory right under the RLA. The false statements made during and
after ratification made by the IBT negotiating committee, and IBT Airline Division
rep Vinnie Graziano. The union has changed the interpretation of the LOA from
being based on public information to confidential and proprietary and is now
stating our grievances have no merit. The union refuses to answer the grievances or
allow them to go to arbitration. That leaves our only remedy the federal court.

Anderson v United Paper workers (8" Cir. 1980)

During the Motion to dismiss hearing held November 2021 the union defense
attorney made many misleading unsubstantiated claims to the judge that
completely contradicted the written letter of agreement and its original intent.
Stating to the judge that the wage increases would be determine by a “particular
method left to the parties . In their Motions to Dismiss in 2022 the company
defendants claim they periodically meet and negotiate a new proprietary cost
model. This is contradictory to 4 years of Teamsters union leadership statements.
The wage increases were based on a Cost Model already negotiated and voted on
by the membership. The United Technicians were told by the IBT “the model is set
and will not change” The model was not to be renegotiated and changed.

NLRA LMRA and RLA - The fair representation doctrine serves as a bulwark to
prevent arbitrary union conduct against individuals stripped of traditional forms of

redress by the provisions of federal labor law. NLRA -The Supreme Court has
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often looked to the LMRA and the National Labor Relations Act (NLRA) in
construing or interpreting the RLA. Steele v. Louisville Nashville R. Co., 323 U.S.
192, 200-201, 65 S.Ct. 226, 231, 89 L.Ed. 173 (1944); Cf. Duggan v. International
Association of Machinists, 510 F.2d 1086, 1087-88 (9th Cir. 1975). . Again, the

plaintiff used these to precisely state the DFR claims against the union to the court.

Lastly as the Court of Appeals indicated, "where the courts are called upon
to fulfill their role as the primary guardians of the duty of fair representation,"
complaints should be construed to avoid dismissals and the plaintiff at the very
least "should be given the opportunity to file supplemental pleadings unless it
appears ‘beyond doubt' that he cannot state a good cause of action. " 407 F.2d, at

679. See Conley v. Gibson, 355 U.S. 41, 45-46 (1957) Czosek v. O 'Mara, 397 U.S.

25 (1970) — (pg. 6 of Opp to UAL MTD FAC)

PENDING AND PREVIOUS CASES

The Appellant has no cases pending in the court of appeals, and has no
previous cases decided in the court of appeals. Mr. Seitz had filed a similar case
with the District Court asserting a similar DFR complaint against the Teamsters

that was dismissed based on statutory time limits.
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CONCLUSION

I believe I have presented enough documented evidence in the court record
and exhibits and provided sufficient 9" Circuit caselaw to support my claims for
the arbitrary, bad faith, dishonest and hostile actions that constitute a valid Duty of
Fair Representation violation by the Teamsters union and its grievance committee
to persuade the court the right to discovery and trial concerning this complaint that

affects over 8000 United Technicians and their families.

For all the reasons stated above, I ask the Court to reverse the District Courts

Order and enter into a judgement in favor of the Plaintiff.

Dated September 23, 2022, respectfully submitted.

/s/ James E Seitz

Pro se plaintiff
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